### MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON 18 MAY 2017 FROM 7.30 PM TO 8.57 PM

#### **Members Present**

Councillors: Bob Pitts (Mayor), Rob Stanton (Deputy Mayor), Mark Ashwell, Parry Batth, Chris Bowring, David Chopping, UllaKarin Clark, Gary Cowan, Andy Croy, Richard Dolinski, Lindsay Ferris, Michael Firmager, Kate Haines, Mike Haines, Charlotte Haitham Taylor, Pauline Helliar-Symons, Tim Holton, Philip Houldsworth, John Jarvis, Clive Jones, Norman Jorgensen, Pauline Jorgensen, John Kaiser, David Lee, Charles Margetts, Julian McGhee-Sumner, Ken Miall, Philip Mirfin, Stuart Munro, Ian Pittock, Barrie Patman, Anthony Pollock, Malcolm Richards, Angus Ross, Beth Rowland, Imogen Shepherd-DuBey, Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey, David Sleight, Chris Smith, Wayne Smith, Bill Soane, Alison Swaddle, Simon Weeks, Oliver Whittle and Shahid Younis

#### 1. ELECTION OF MAYOR FOR 2017/18

Bob Pitts, the current Mayor made a speech to the Council.

The Mayor thanked Council for having elected him as Mayor the previous year. He stated that he was the first Mayor who had got married during their time of office, and paid tribute to his wife Val, thanking her for all the support that she had provided.

The Mayor also thanked Rob Stanton, Deputy Mayor, Andy Couldrick the Chief Executive, Anne Hunter, Service Manager Democratic Services and Annmarie Bonwick, Civic Communications Officer, for the support and advice that they had provided to him over the municipal year. He wished Annmarie and Andy well in their new endeavours.

The Mayor indicated that participating in Citizenship Ceremonies had been a particular highlight of being Mayor and that during his term of office, he had also endeavoured to raise the profile of the outlying parishes.

The Mayor called for nominations for the office of Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

It was proposed by Charlotte Haitham Taylor and seconded by Angus Ross that Rob Stanton be elected as Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

Lindsay Ferris commented that the Liberal Democrat Group were pleased to support this nomination.

It was unanimously agreed that Rob Stanton should be elected as Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

**RESOLVED:** That Rob Stanton be elected as Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

Rob Stanton made the statutory acceptance of office pursuant to Section 83 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Rob Stanton thanked the Council for electing him as Mayor, which he regarded as a great honour.

The Mayor stated that he and his family had lived in the Wokingham Borough since 1990 and had chosen to stay in the area after he retired from W H Smiths. He believed that Wokingham was one of the best places to live.

He was first elected to the Council in 2002 and had been a councillor ever since, holding many different roles. He had particularly enjoyed being Executive Member for Children's Services and had worked closely with Andy Couldrick in his previous role as Director of Children's Services.

The Mayor commented that two years ago he had been seriously ill and thanked the Royal Berkshire Hospital for caring for him and his friends and family for their care and support.

The Mayor paid tribute to Bob Pitts and his wife Val for their support and the work that they had undertaken during his time as Deputy Mayor. He commented that he too had very much enjoyed participating in Citizenship Ceremonies.

Lastly, he thanked his wife Maureen and his sons lain and Geoff for their love and support.

### 2. APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR FOR 2017/18

The Mayor called for nominations for the office of Deputy Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

It was proposed by Rob Stanton and seconded by Charlotte Haitham Taylor that John Kaiser be appointed as Deputy Mayor for the 2017/18 municipal year.

It was unanimously agreed that John Kaiser should be elected as Deputy Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

**RESOLVED:** That John Kaiser be elected as Deputy Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

John Kaiser made the statutory acceptance of office pursuant to Section 83 of the Local Government Act 1972.

John Kaiser thanked the Council for appointing him to the office of Deputy Mayor and the great opportunity that this provided. He congratulated Rob Stanton on his appointment as Mayor and commented that he was looking forward to working with and supporting him.

During his acceptance speech, Councillor Kaiser indicated that his family had been part of the local community for many years and that he was proud of the Borough and all that it had to offer.

#### 3. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were submitted from Alistair Auty, Keith Baker, Laura Blumenthal, Prue Bray, John Halsall, Emma Hobbs, Abdul Loyes and Paul Swaddle.

#### 4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 23 March 2017 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Mayor.

### 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

#### 6. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited members of the public to submit questions to the appropriate Members.

## **6.1 Gill Purchase had asked Councillor Keith Baker the following question:** This question was withdrawn.

# 6.2 Guy Grandison asked the Executive Member for Resident Services the following question:

I went into Lower Earley Library last weekend and was impressed by the new facilities that had been installed, could you tell me if this has increased usage at Lower Earley Library and our other borough libraries?

#### **Answer**

The new self-service kiosks were introduced into six libraries at the beginning of April 2017 and they are already becoming very popular with library users. Since their introduction, at the Lower Earley Library 20% of transactions, which is issues, returns, etc. have been done via the kiosks; whilst across all ten of the Borough's libraries 22% of transactions have been done via the kiosks.

These are very encouraging statistics for the Library Service and we would hope that these numbers increase as people become more familiar with the kiosks. They are particularly helpful in that they allow the librarians to spend time with individual residents, helping with queries, giving them advice on various things, and generally talking to them rather than spending their time handling books.

In terms of library usage, last year we had a small increase in the number of people using and visiting our libraries. Just over 25,000 people actively used the library to borrow an item, whilst in total we had just over 476,000 visits to our libraries.

It is a little early to expect to see an increase in usage because of the kiosks, but they are certainly already making a valuable contribution, as I mentioned, to the efficient operation of the library service and giving the library staff the extra time they need to really add value for the community.

### **Supplementary Question:**

Will you continue to invest in libraries in the Borough is what I would like to know?

### **Supplementary Answer:**

We have got a very good record on libraries in Wokingham. During my tenure, we have extended the library hours and through improvements in terms of cost effectiveness. Previously we actually introduced a new library in Finchampstead. I am very hopeful that we will continue to expand the library service as I believe it is popular and adapting itself to the new ways of using libraries. It provides a lot of additional social services as well as just pure book lending and I think people really do enjoy the libraries. We are certainly increasing the footfall and I would like to see that increase in future.

# 6.3 Susan Tyldesley asked the Executive Member for Planning and Regeneration the following question:

Under what circumstances can Wokingham Borough Council officers agree at the preplanning stage to a planning application for a quarry and cement factory to proceed in advance of the new Central & Eastern Berkshire Joint Minerals & Waste Plan that is currently being considered?

I ask the question because one of the stated aims of the new Minerals and Waste Plan is that... 'all the sites will be considered holistically across the whole Plan area to ensure the best strategy can be achieved.'... I am unclear as to how this could actually be achieved if agreement has already been given in principle to an individual planning application that should evidently be part of the bigger regional consideration.

#### **Answer**

As you can see on our website, (<a href="http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/planning/planning-applications/pre-application-advice/">http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/planning/planning-applications/pre-application-advice/</a>) as with most Local Planning Authorities, Wokingham Borough offers a discretionary, chargeable, informal, without prejudice and confidential pre-application advice process. Through experience and as a matter of best practice we have found that this self- funding service generally improves the quality of submissions made by applicants so that when the Council consults on and considers them there will be a better overall process in the wider public interest. The process will include advising upon the policies applying at the time, or as commented by you, the transitional period to which the process may apply. No formal determination is ever secured via our pre-application submission.

Any applicant can submit a planning application to the local planning authority whose duty is to determine this within the statutory or other agreed timescales. In the case of this application the matter will be determined by the Council's Planning Committee. In the interim a new Mineral and Waste Local Plan is being prepared and subject to Executive approval, consultation on the issues and options will commence in June this year, next month. The current application will be assessed in line with national and the Council's planning policy, and will be subject to separate assessment and decision making process will go through the Council's Planning Committee. It will be considered based upon the policies which apply at the time of determination; however it is likely that a determination will not be possible in this case until early in 2018 given the amount of information required to reach a decision.

### **Supplementary Question:**

I did read through a written statement but there was no mention of waiting for the new Minerals Plan. Would that be normal, not to at least include some advice that there is a new plan coming up?

### **Supplementary Answer:**

Yes, it would. That would not come under the pre application advice in any way. Was that a statement from the party themselves was it? Yes, that would be normal.

#### 7. PETITIONS

There were no petitions received.

### 8. MAYOR'S OR HEAD OF PAID SERVICE'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Mayor informed Members that he intended to support two important areas that were dear to his heart during his term of office. He planned to support Cancer Care at the Royal Berkshire Hospital who had saved his life. He would also be supporting a charity that was setting up cancer champions. In addition, he would be supporting charity regarding children with special needs. The Mayor indicated that he would provide further information regarding his chosen charities at the next Council meeting.

#### 9. ELECTION OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

Following the current Leader of the Council's decision to step down from the role, and in accordance with the governance arrangements which were adopted by Council at its meeting on 18 November 2010, the Mayor called for nominations for the Office of Leader of the Council for a four year term (or until the Leader's Term of Office as a Councillor expired).

It was proposed by David Lee and seconded by Stuart Munro that Charlotte Haitham Taylor be elected Leader of the Council for a four year term.

David Lee commented that Charlotte Haitham Taylor had gained great experience of the Council, including as part of her previous role as Executive Member for Children's Services. She would drive the Council forward.

There being no other nominations, the Mayor declared that Charlotte Haitham Taylor had been elected as Leader of the Council for a four year term.

**RESOLVED:** That Charlotte Haitham Taylor be elected Leader of the Council for a four year term.

Charlotte Haitham Taylor, Leader of the Council made the following statement: Before laying out my new Executive tonight, I would like to say a few words about Andy Couldrick, our Chief Executive. As many of you will now be aware, Andy was approached by the Department for Education to go and be the Chief Executive of Birmingham's first Children's Trust. Andy came to Wokingham in 2009 to turn our Children's Services around which he did with aplomb, with skill, and tenacity that this has earnt him recognition. Andy then moved up to the role of Chief Executive under the then Leader of the Council, Councillor David Lee. Andy has been an outstanding Chief Executive and with his background in social work has been of the greatest help in building relationships with our partners and keeping this Council focused on what are the really, really critical elements in keeping our most vulnerable elements safe and our community prospering as a whole. I am sorry that in my new role I will only have a few months to work with you Andy, and in leading the Council, but I am excited that you are going back to your roots and to your vocation. I know that you will bring about the vital changes that are needed for the children and young people in Birmingham, in your new and very challenging role. I would like to take this opportunity on behalf of the Council to wish you the very best of luck in your new job and put on record my sincerest thanks for your dedication and commitment to all of our residents, here in this Borough, and especially for our children.

I would like to pay especial tribute also to Councillor Baker tonight for his three years as Leader of this Authority. He is the architect of the 21st Century Council, the merger of Optalis with our neighbours in the Royal Borough, and he started a number of huge capital programmes and projects, investing in new leisure facilities, roads and affordable homes. He always showed tremendous devotion to this role and commitment to getting the best for our Borough.

I would most humbly like to thank my colleagues here tonight for electing me to lead this Council. I am sincerely grateful for all your support and the confidence you have placed in me. I will endeavour to serve this Borough to the very greatest of my abilities.

Now, I would like to take you through my Executive. Councillor Julian McGhee-Sumner will be Executive Member for Adults' Services, Health, Wellbeing and Housing, and deputising for him will be Councillor Richard Dolinski. Julian is continuing with his responsibilities from last year and I am pleased that Richard will be bringing his knowledge from Children's Services into his new role, where I am certain he will make a great impact. Councillor Mark Ashwell, Executive Member for Children's Services, and deputising for him will be Alison Swaddle. These Executive titles remain the same from last year. Both Mark and Alison have served before in the Executive and Deputy Executive roles respectively and have already wasted no time in getting stuck in. Councillor Norman Jorgensen will be the Executive Member for Environment, Sports, Leisure and Libraries, and deputising for him will be Councillor Michael Firmager. Both of these Members bring a great wealth of experience to these roles having served for numerous years in this Council, in many different positions. Councillor Stuart Munro, Executive Member for Business and Economic Development and Regeneration, and deputising for him will be Councillor Philip Mirfin. This portfolio creates a new focus on the aspects of business and economic development, aspects of the old Finance role. Going forward I strongly believe that this Council needs to look for innovative ways to be self sufficient and having a dedicated Member to engage with our thriving business community will be crucial to our success in the next few years. Councillor Whittle will be the Executive Member for Finance, 21st Century Council, Internal Services and Human Resources, and deputising for him will be Charles Margetts. Both of these two Members bring an abundance of skills from business and from finance from their careers, together with fresh insight to take this Council through the exciting but challenging times. Councillor Simon Weeks will be the Executive Member for Planning and Enforcement, and I am delighted that Simon will be returning to the Executive. I know that his experience from his years in chairing the Planning Committee mean he will be an asset to my team. Councillor Chris Bowring will be the Executive Member for Highways and for Transport. With his many years on the Planning Committee too and his Deputy Executive Member experience, he will be able to use his knowledge of highways to bring sensible solutions to the issues we all face day to day in getting about the Borough. Councillor David Lee will be the Executive Member for Strategic Highways and Planning and Deputy Leader. I am pleased that this Council will have David at the table when we embark on creating our new Local Plan. This is a new role in the Executive because of the sheer enormity and importance placed on getting this right, for not only our existing residents, but for those who will be our residents in the years to come. David, as someone who has been Leader himself will make a very able Deputy and it is a great honour to have him on my Executive, especially as he took a great leap of faith in 2012 when he put me on his team. Councillor Pauline Jorgensen will be the Deputy Executive Member for Communications. With her expertise in this field and the significant scale of changes that 21st Century Council will bring, we will need to ensure that our communications are a two way street. Our residents must be able to tell us effectively what they need and we must be able to successfully communicate to them in real time across all media channels.

I am sure that it cannot have escaped your notice that we are in the middle of a General Election campaign. Purdah rules mean that we cannot be overly political tonight and I am not going to talk about what is happening in the hustings. Instead, I want to speak to you about one of my key priorities as Leader. My job is to act in the interest of all residents across the whole of the Borough, but there are many of those who need particular attention and focus. I want to use the privilege afforded to my new role to focus on raising awareness of domestic abuse, which I know affects many families in our area, who are often too afraid to come forward for help because of the perceived social stigma. I want to use this time as Leader to make it clear that support is available to help our families find a

way out of difficult and complex situations. I want to be a Leader who will tackle these challenges in our community, head on. There can be no doubt; together as a Council, we are facing great adversity which this Borough has not faced before, but I believe that no difficulty that we might find on our path will be insurmountable. My Executive, my colleagues and I, have the drive to take this Authority forward for our residents, to make the Council self-sufficient, address funding and housing issues and ensure that our Borough remains a great place to live and to do business.

## Lindsay Ferris, the Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group made the following statement:

I should like to congratulate Charlotte on her new role as Leader of the Council and wish Andy Couldrick all the best when he takes up his role as head of the newly formed Children's Body in Birmingham, I believe next August. I should also like to congratulate the outgoing Mayor for his work last year and I hope that the Mayor has a good year.

Over the past months, I have regularly been asked by residents "and what would you do if you ran the Council?" So here are a few measures that we would introduce, and I have tried to be careful with my wording.

We would initiate a moratorium on the whole of the Town Centre Regeneration project. We know some areas have already been contracted, but where they have not, we will review, and in particular, we would stop any building on the green spaces of Elms Field and would install services for events on the field.

Two; the level of Council debt forecast is worryingly high and we have doubts about whether they are achievable. A thorough review of this debt would be instigated. It would be totally unacceptable if any of this projected debt were to fall on the residents.

We would immediately accept recommendation three as proposed by the Independent Remuneration Panel last Autumn. No councillor should be allowed to receive more than one paid Special Responsibility Allowance and this includes the NEDs and outside bodies.

We would reduce the budget associated with temporary staff by £600,000 per annum. We feel that it is totally unacceptable to have temporary staff paid up to £891 per day, irrespective of whether the Council receives some back, at a time of severe cutbacks. We would use the £600,000 to fund front line services; in particular we would reintroduce the school patrol services, previously cut, and we would save those school patrols that are still under threat. The safety of our children is paramount.

#### 10. MEMBER QUESTION TIME

In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited Members to submit questions to the appropriate Members

# 10.1 Shahid Younis had asked the Executive Member for Children's Services the following question:

Due to the pre-election period for the Parliamentary Election on 8 June 2017, this question was not asked.

# 10.2 Charles Margetts asked the Executive Member for Strategic Highways and Planning the following question:

Could the Executive Member provide an update on the start of the Northern Distributor Road at Coppid Beech?

#### **Answer**

The Council is not constructing this section of the Northern Distributor Road and no definitive programme has been submitted by the developer to date, for the proposed build out of the site access.

A formal request has been made by the developer, through their submitted Construction Management Plan, for a temporary site access off the A329 London Road and Council Officers have advised the process for achieving this.

Once constructed the temporary access will enable the developer to start building the Northern Distributor Road from within their site.

Council Officers are working closely with the developers to finalise the detailed highway design, which will then be secured through a legal agreement prior to the works commencing.

### **Supplementary Question:**

Does this not show that whilst the Council can give consent for new roads and new houses it cannot control the speed with which they are actually built and that it is completely at the mercy of the developer?

### **Supplementary Answer**

Developers have always driven their own building programme based on their commercial judgement and to this extent we are in their hands over timing. Any related infrastructure or funding would however only be necessary to mitigate the development when it is occupied and as such, any delay will not normally be harmful. However, this is something I will be looking at, as delays we are experiencing, are not acceptable.

# 10.3 UllaKarin Clark asked the Executive Member for Strategic Highways and Planning the following question:

Could the Executive Member tell me what is being done to produce a parking strategy for Wokingham Borough?

#### Answer

A Member and Officer working group was formed in February 2017 to progress this important initiative for the Council. It is a complex project with many interdependencies across the Council. However, despite this it is expected that a draft strategy will be agreed within this working group by the end of 2017. Following that, the draft will be consulted upon widely, amended as appropriate, and ultimately agreed by the Executive Committee to allow it to be formerly adopted, enabling it to form parking policy within Wokingham.

# 10.4 Tim Holton had asked the Executive Member for Finance, 21st Century Council, Internal Services and Human Resources, the following question:

Due to the pre-election period for the Parliamentary Election on 8 June 2017, this question was not asked.

# 10.5 Philip Mirfin asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the following question:

Could the Executive Member provide an update on the development of the Winnersh Relief Road and its junction with the Northern Distributor Road at Reading Road?

#### Answer

The Winnersh Relief Road Phase 2 project is still relatively early in its development.

It will deliver packages with other major highway infrastructure schemes for greater efficiency, ensuring value for money for residents.

A preferred engineering solution for its junction with the A329 has been produced which includes consultation with ward members and the local parish councils.

The project team has also considered the linkage with the proposed roundabout junction for the new North Wokingham Distributor Road. The construction together of two junctions and associated infrastructure on either side of the motorway bridge will provide greater benefit and efficiency to the Council.

This approach has resulted in the North Wokingham Distributor Road junction being incorporated into the Winnersh Relief Road Phase 2 project.

### **Supplementary Question:**

My residents are very concerned as to when the Northern Distributor Road will be completed because this clearly is effecting Emmbrook residents and I would like to have an answer to that please.

### **Supplementary Answer:**

Although the project is still being developed and subject to numerous risks, current projections suggest the project will be complete in Summer 2021.

# 10.6 John Jarvis asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the following question:

Could the Executive Member tell me whether the Council's application for Civil Parking Enforcement has been received by the Department for Transport?

#### Answer

Wokingham Borough Council's application to adopt Civil Parking Enforcement Powers was received by the Department for Transport on Monday 24 April 2017.

#### **Supplementary Question:**

Does the Executive Member have a date when approval is likely to be given, and how long after this will Wokingham Borough Council commence and enforce these parking restrictions?

### **Supplementary Answer:**

CPE tender returns are being evaluated at the moment with an award proposed for this Summer in June.

Following that, the successful parking provider for CPE will need to get fully resourced and mobilised to "Go Live" in October this year.

The Council have prepared a detailed communication plan to ensure residents, businesses, the Town and Parish Councils and elected Members are kept fully informed of progress and timescales relating to Civil Parking Enforcement.

# 10.7 Michael Firmager had asked the Executive Member for Business & Economic Development & Regeneration the following question:

Due to the pre-election period for the Parliamentary Election on 8 June 2017, this question was not asked.

# 10.8 Chris Smith had asked the Executive Member for Finance, 21st Century Council, Internal Services and Human Resources the following question:

Due to the pre-election period for the Parliamentary Election on 8 June 2017, this question was not asked.

# 10.9 Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the following question:

What is the reason for the delay in delivering the Winnersh Relief Road (and all of its ancillary bits (such as Lower Earley Way Expansion) which is sorely needed for relief of the Reading Road and Winnersh Crossroads Chaos (which seems to be almost a car park at times) and the increase in cost of the project (which seems to be not included as a separate budget lines of the MTFP)?

#### Answer

There is no "delay" in delivering the Winnersh Relief Road. I am assuming you are talking about Phase 2.

All major road schemes and their associated projects have emerging detailed programmes, the durations of which are set by the level of scheme development and the delivery requirements of each project. As development continues on major schemes, the Highways Team are also developing the overall delivery strategy for both the preconstruction and construction phases.

Historically, the estimate for the Winnersh scheme, and others, was only delivered from the basic costs of other similar schemes elsewhere. In April 2016 the cost estimate of all major schemes was reviewed which provided greater accuracy to the Council, however scheme costs will continue to be refined and revised as scheme design progresses.

### **Supplementary Question:**

What is the reason for the King Street Lane intersection part of the Winnersh Relief Road, delay, right now, stopping it in the middle of the project rather than letting it finish?

### **Supplementary Answer:**

I am afraid I do not have that information. I will have to get an answer back to you at a later date.

# 10.10 Imogen Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the following question:

At the moment, the volunteers who give up their time and skills to be school governors are expected to attend meetings or training at Shute End and pay for parking. While they have the option to claim the parking charges off the schools, most will not as our schools are already being starved of funding.

This seems utterly wrong to ask these volunteers to pay for the privilege of being a school governor.

Why are we charging these parking fees to these volunteers and surely it is within the

Council's ability to provide 'one-off' permits for those attending these kinds of meetings or volunteer training at Shute End?

#### **Answer**

I am very sympathetic to Imogen's question. Those who volunteer are a very important part of our society which really could not function without them, not just school governors, but the many other carers that we have. Unfortunately, as good as this suggestion is, I am reluctant to accept it.

The Highways and Transport team must show parity regarding car park charging regimes at Shute End, and all other car parks for that matter. While school governors are volunteers as you suggest, it would be up to the school to determine if they can reimburse any costs incurred by the school governors. This is consistent to the Council's approach with other voluntary organisations.

# 10.11 Clive Jones had asked the Executive Member for Planning and Enforcement the following question:

Due to the pre-election period for the Parliamentary Election on 8 June 2017, this question was not asked.

### 11. CONTINUATION OF THE MEETING

At this point in the meeting 8.45pm, in accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.12 (m), Council considered a Motion to continue the meeting beyond 9.00pm for a maximum of 30 minutes to enable further business on the Agenda to be transacted. This was proposed by Rob Stanton and seconded by John Kaiser.

Upon being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be carried.

# 12. POLITICAL BALANCE OF THE COUNCIL AND ALLOCATION AND APPOINTMENT TO SEATS ON COUNCIL COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS

The Council considered a report on the political balance of the Council and the appointment to the Council's Committees/Panels/Board in accordance with the wishes of the Political Groups.

The report set out a number of recommendations which the Council was asked to consider.

It was proposed by Charlotte Haitham Taylor and seconded by David Lee that the report be approved.

Upon being put to the vote, it was:

#### **RESOLVED:** That Council

- 1) having reviewed the representation of the political groups on the Council, confirms that it has 45 Conservative Group Members, 7 Liberal Democrat Group Members, 1 Labour Member and 1 Independent Member (as set out in Para 1.1);
- 2) approves the appointment and composition of Committees and Boards as set out in Para 2.1;
- approves the allocation of seats on Committees and Boards on the basis that, of the 86 seats (as set out in Para 3.6), 74 be allocated to the Conservative Group and 12 be allocated to the Liberal Democrat Group;

- 4) approves the proposals submitted by the respective Group Leaders and that those Members be appointed to the Committees and Boards as set out in Appendix 1 to these Minutes;
- agrees that the principles of proportionality be applied when Members are appointed to Sub Committees, Panels or Working Groups;
- 6) notes the appointment of the Independent Persons to assist the work of the Standards Committee and the co-opted Parish/Town Council Representatives as set out in Appendix 1 to these Minutes;
- 7) notes the elected Member representatives on the Health and Wellbeing Board, as set out in Appendix 1 to these Minutes, as nominated by the Leader of Council in accordance with Section 194 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

# 13. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMEN AND VICE-CHAIRMEN OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES AND BOARDS 2017/18

The Council considered the appointment of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Council Committees/Panels/Boards, as circulated at the meeting as Appendix 2.

Upon being put to the vote, it was:

**RESOLVED:** That the appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Council Committees/Panels/Boards be agreed, as set out in Appendix 2 to these Minutes.

## 14. APPOINTMENT TO PANELS/WORKING GROUPS/JOINT COMMITTEES AND VARIOUS BODIES 2017/18

Members were asked to refer to a list of nominations to various Panels, Working Groups, Joint Committees and Various Bodies, as circulated at the meeting as Appendix 3.

Upon being put to the vote, it was:

**RESOLVED:** That Members be appointed to the Council's Panels/Working Groups/Joint Committee and Various Bodies as set out in Appendix 3 to these Minutes.

### 15. APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2017/18

Members were asked to refer to a list of nominations to various Outside Bodies, as circulated at the meeting at Appendix 4.

Where more nominations had been received than places available, individual votes were taken.

Upon being put to the vote, it was:

**RESOLVED:** That Members be appointed to the Outside Bodies as set out in Appendix 4 to these Minutes.

### 16. HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY

The Council considered the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2017-2020.

It was proposed by Julian McGhee-Sumner and seconded by Charlotte Haitham Taylor that the recommendations as set out on Agenda page 73 be approved.

Upon being put to the vote, it was:

**RESOLVED:** That the priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2017-20 be endorsed.

### 17. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17

The Council considered the Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2016-17.

It was proposed by Julian McGhee-Sumner and seconded by Charlotte Haitham Taylor that the Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2016-17 be approved.

Upon being put to the vote, it was:

**RESOLVED:** That the report from the Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board be noted.

### 18. APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011

The Council considered a report regarding the appointment of Independent Persons under the Localism Act 2011.

It was proposed by Charlotte Haitham Taylor and seconded by David Lee that the recommendations as set out on Agenda page 89 be approved.

Upon being put to the vote, it was:

#### **RESOLVED:** That:

- Paddy Haycocks and Nicholas Oxborough be appointed as 'Independent Persons' under Section 28 (7) of the Localism Act 2011, increasing the number of the Council's Independent Persons to three including David Comben, an existing Independent Person;
- 2) the decision made by the Council in July 2012 be reaffirmed and an allowance of £1,000 per annum be paid for the position of Independent Person.